

# **By-Laws of Ulmstead Swim Club, Inc.**

(As Revised November, 2001)

## **ARTICLE I**

### **Name and Purpose**

The name of the organization shall be the Ulmstead Swim Club, Inc., which is established and operated for the recreational benefit of the members, as a non-profit organization under the laws of the State of Maryland and Anne Arundel County.

## **ARTICLE II**

### Section I.

Membership in the Club shall consist of Family Members and shall be restricted to property holders in and residents of Ulmstead Estates who are members of Ulmstead Club, Inc. , in good standing. However, the Board of Directors may enter into Silver Membership agreements, pursuant to Article II, Section 13, with property holders in and residents of Ulmstead Estates who are members in good standing of UCI and with families who are not residents of Ulmstead Estates to provide for a Non-Resident Family Membership. (Revised and added reference to and section regarding Silver Membership during November, 2001 General Meeting.). The Non-Resident Family Membership is subject to the following terms and conditions:

- (a) The Non-Resident Family shall submit an application containing such information as shall be required by the Board of Directors.
- (b) The Non-Resident Family shall be recommended by a Ulmstead Swim Club, Inc. Member in Good Standing who shall be responsible for the conduct of the Non-Resident Family.
- (c) The Non-Resident Family shall pay an annual assessment fee and nonrefundable application fee which shall be greater than the annual fee charged to Ulmstead Swim Club, Inc. members. The specific amount of the annual fee for the Non-Resident Family shall be recommended by the Board of Directors and approved by a simple majority of the Ulmstead Swim Club, Inc. members at the Annual Meeting per Article VI, Section 1.
- (d) The proceeds of the annual assessment shall be used solely to finance the costs of the operating budget and the capital reserve requirements.
- (e) The Non-Resident Family shall be defined as the head of the household, the

spouse, children who reside in the household, or other dependents residing in the household; all such persons to be named on the application for membership.

(f) The Non-Resident Family shall be subject to all applicable provisions of the Bylaws and any rules and regulations adopted pursuant thereto.

(g) No tenants of the Non-Resident Family members shall be eligible for NonResident Family membership.

(h) The Non-Resident Family members shall have no voting rights but may attend any meetings of the Club and shall receive any such or information distributed by the Club.

(i) The Non-Resident Family guest privileges shall be limited to House Guests.

(j) The Non-Resident Family membership shall not be transferable .

(k) Applications for Non-Resident Family memberships shall be considered on a first-come, first-serve basis.

(l) Under no circumstances shall the total number of Non-Resident Family Members plus the Ulmstead Swim Club Resident Family Members exceed the maximum allowable number of family memberships contained in Article II, Section 9.

(m) The rights of the Board of Directors of the Ulmstead Swim Club, Inc. to enter into agreements with Non-Resident Family Members, subject to the terms and conditions stated in this Section, shall be approved each year (as part of the Swim Club budget approval process) by a simply majority of the Ulmstead Swim Club, Inc. members of the Annual Meeting per Article IV, Section 1.

Modification of this section shall require a 75% majority of members of Ulmstead Swim Club, Inc. notwithstanding provisions of Article IX, Section 4.

(Section I was approved by a majority of the membership on 11/18/92. The membership on that date gave approval to the Board to solicit the necessary 75% vote by proxy. The required total number of votes was received by the Board in 2/93.)

Section 2. A Family Member is defined as: A head of a household, his or her spouse, their children or any other individual residing in the household as shown on the original application for membership.

Section 3. In instances where a property owner may rent to tenants, pool privileges may be extended to tenants, but in no instance may the owner and tenant enjoy pool privileges simultaneously. Tenants may not qualify for membership in the pool and their use of the pool is conditioned on the owner satisfying all requirements for membership set forth in these By-Laws.

Section 4. Members shall be subject to such special assessments as prescribed by the Board of Directors. Assessments in excess of \$10.00 per year must be approved by a majority of the membership present at a duly authorized meeting.

Section 5. For the purpose of voting, representation, and quorum count, each family membership shall be counted as one vote. This vote may be cast by one or two heads of the family or any other member, 18 years of age or older. A vote may be cast by proxy provided the proxy voter has a statement in writing, signed by a head of the family directing the proxy holder to cast the vote.

Section 6. Membership in the Club may be terminated at any time subject to the provisions of Article V.

Section 7.

- (a) All Family Members of the Club shall be accorded the facilities of the Club subject to the rules and regulations, a copy of which shall be available at the pool office at all times.
- (b) The Board of Directors shall by rule fix the terms and conditions upon which guests of members may use the facilities of the Club.
- (c) Admission to the pool will be governed by the operating rules.

- (d) Any property of the Club broken or damaged by a member, or their guest, shall be promptly paid for by such member. No person shall take or borrow any article belonging to the Club.

Section 8. Any Family Member may, for cause and after having been given an opportunity for a hearing, be suspended for a period of up to three months by a 5/7 vote of the Board of Directors or expelled by a 3/4 vote of the Club membership. Cause for suspension, or expulsion shall, in general, consist of violation of these By-Laws or the Rules of the Club. There will be no refunds of dues for periods of suspension or expulsion.

Section 9. The number of family memberships of the Club shall not exceed 175. (Revised to "175" on November 29, 1979.). Silver memberships shall not be counted, when calculating the number of family memberships under this section. (Added during November 2001 General Meeting.).

Section 10. After maximum authorized membership has been reached, applications will be placed in the order in which they are received on a list maintained by the Membership Committee.

Section 11. A membership certificate shall be issued by the Treasurer to any Family approved in keeping with Article II of these By-Laws and upon receipt of payment in full in the amount of the share's net asset value as of the date of the last annual meeting.

Section 12. As an inducement to promote the establishment of the Swim Club, Charter Members are extended the privilege of selling their membership certificate to the purchaser of their home upon departure from the community and termination of membership provided that all indebtedness owing to the club by the outgoing member shall have been satisfied prior to the sale. This privilege shall be limited exclusively to Charter Members and shall not be perpetuated.

- (a) A Charter Member is defined as a member of the Swim Club as of August 1, **1971**, except that the privilege of Charter Membership shall be extended to a family who makes application for membership including the full membership fee, on or before August 1, 1971, which acceptance of their membership contingent upon becoming a member in good standing of Ulmstead Club, Inc., within 30 days subsequent to the date of their deed.

Section 13. To be eligible for a Silver Membership the resident shall satisfy the following conditions: a) UCI member in good standing, b) reside in Ulmstead Estates for at least eighteen (18) years, and c) have no minor children living in the residence. The number of Silver Memberships to be available in any pool year, the annual fees, and the amount of pool

use allowed for the fee, shall be determined by the USC Board on a yearly basis. The available Silver Memberships for each year shall be first offered to Silver Membership residents from the immediate prior year before offering to other qualified residents. If there were none from the prior calendar year, then the Silver Memberships will first be offered to those residents who held such memberships the prior year when there were any Silver Memberships. Silver Memberships shall not have any voting rights, but may attend any meetings of USC and shall receive any information distributed by USC to full resident and non-resident members. (Section 13 added at the November, 2001 General Meeting.).

### ARTICLE III

#### Management

Section 1. The property and business of the Club shall be managed by an eight (8) member Board of Directors with four (4) officers. The offices of the Corporation shall be President, Vice President, Secretary, and Treasurer. With the exception of Treasurer, Officers of the Corporation shall be elected from Board Members by the Board of Directors following the Annual Meeting and their term of office shall be for a period of one year. An Officer may serve two successive terms in the same office. The treasurer shall be a member of the Board of Directors with full voting power and shall be appointed by the Board of Directors following the Annual Meeting.

One Director shall be a member of the Board of Directors of Ulmstead Club, Inc. , and appointed by that Board to the Swim Club Board of Directors with full voting power. This Board Member shall not be eligible to serve as an Officer of the Corporation.

The Board of Directors (except for the appointed members) shall be elected by a majority of the members present and voting at any meeting of the Club membership in accordance with Section 2 below. Each of the Directors shall be a member in good standing of the Club; member in good standing being defined as a member whose membership is not delinquent in dues.

Section 2. At each Annual Meeting of the Club, three (3) people shall be elected as Directors of the Club to serve up to three (3) year terms to fill the vacant chairs . This will insure a stable

Board with at least three (3) members familiar with procedures. Any member of the Board of Directors who shall cease to hold membership in the Club automatically shall cease to hold office. No elected member of the Board of Directors, after having served a full term, shall be eligible for re-election to the Board of Directors until one year has passed. (Revision from two to three year terms made at the November, 2001 General Meeting.).

Section 3. Consistent with these By-Laws, the Board of Directors shall:

- (a) Transact all Club business.
- (b) Make and amend rules for the regulation and use of Club property.
- (c) Appoint and remove such agents or employees as it may deem necessary and may fix their duties and compensation.
- (d) Pass on the recommendations of the Membership Committee for new members.
- (e) Fix, impose and remit penalties for violations of these By-Laws and Rules of the Club.
- (f) Fill any vacancy in membership on the Board of Directors to serve until the next Annual Meeting of the members.

Section 4. The Board of Directors shall meet at least once a month, with the exception of December, unless a meeting is scheduled by the President. (Revision adding the December exception November, 2001). Five (5) members present shall constitute a quorum to do business. In the event a question before the Board results in a vote which cannot be resolved, a question shall then submitted to the membership for a decision.

Section 5. Nothing in these By-Laws shall be construed to permit the Board of directors to borrow, spend, or pledge the credits of the Club without the specific approval of the Club membership at a duly-held meeting

Section 6. Any member of the Board of Directors may be removed from office by a majority

vote of the members of the Swim Club present at a meeting called in accordance with these By-Laws.

## ARTICLE IV

### Officers

Section 1. The Officers of the Club shall consist of a President, a Vice President, a Secretary, and a Treasurer.

Section 2. The President shall preside at the meetings of the Club and Board of Directors and shall be the Administrative Officer of the Club.

Section 3. The Vice President, in the absence or disability of the President, shall act in the President's stead.

Section 4. The Secretary shall send out the notices of the meetings of the Club, keep the minutes, attend to the correspondence pertaining to the office and perform such other duties as may be requested by the President.

Section 5. The Treasurer shall attend to keeping the accounts of the Club, collecting its revenue, paying its bills as approved by the Board of Directors, depositing funds of the Club in any depository as may be authorized by the Board. The Treasurer shall perform such other duties pertaining to the office as may be requested by the President.

## ARTICLE V

### Dues and Fees

#### Section 1.

(a) The Board of Directors shall establish dues for the ensuing year sufficient to provide for the necessary operating expenses of the Club and the proper maintenance and minor improvement of its property. Such dues shall be payable by April 1 of each year. Any member who fails to notify the Board of his decision to resign his membership prior to March 1 will be liable for the coming year's dues and shall have their membership terminated pursuant to the terms and

conditions of Article V, Section 5. (Revision regarding membership termination added November, 2001 General Meeting.).

(b) Any member failing to pay dues or indebtedness before the 10th day of the month following that in which a statement of indebtedness shall have been sent to them by the Treasurer shall be notified that, if such indebtedness shall not be paid within 15 days after the sending of such notice, their membership in the Club shall be terminated and they shall be assessed a late fee of fifty (\$50) dollars. The Board reserves the right to increase the late fee and other penalties without alterations in the by-laws. Increases in the late fee and other penalties will be published to residents and non-residents in the Weathervane prior to their institution. Prior to using the pool for the year a resident or non-resident member assessed a late fee or any other penalty, shall not only pay the yearly dues and other annual expenses or assessments, but also pay the late fee or satisfy any penalty. If after sixty (60) days the member has not paid all indebtedness to USC, or obtained approval from the Board for additional time to pay the indebtedness, then the membership in the USC shall be terminated and the terms and conditions of Article V, Section 5 shall apply. (Revision to By-Laws following "the Club shall be terminated... November, 2001 General Meeting.) The Board of Directors, in their discretion, may reinstate any membership upon request and repayment of all indebtedness to the Club.

(c) New members joining the Swim Club during the operating period of the pool shall be required to pay a pro-rata share of the established annual dues and assessments for that year based on the date of acceptance of their membership and as deemed equitable by the Board of Directors.

Section 2. In addition to the normal membership fee, new members, with the exception of those purchasing membership from a Charter Member, as provided for in Article II, Sections 12 and 12 (a) of these By-Laws, shall be required to pay an initiation fee at the beginning of each year at an amount not less than \$50. As an added incentive to promote the establishment of the

Swim Club, Charter Members shall be except from any initiation fee. The initiation fee shall be placed in the debt service fund or the capital improvement fund at the discretion of the Board of Directors.

Section 3. Members shall be responsible for the payment of all charges incurred by guests introduced by them.

Section 4. The Board of Directors shall establish the fees governing guest privileges and they will be included in the Club's Operating Rules.

Section 5. Upon termination of a membership for any cause, with the exception of Charter

Membership provisions as contained in Article II, Section 12 and Section 12 (a), of these By-Laws, the membership certificate shall be taken over by the Club. If there is an indebtedness owing to the Club by the outgoing member, it shall be a lien upon and charged against his membership certificate. If the Club is unable to obtain possession of the membership certificate, it may be canceled on the books of the Club and a new certificate issued in place thereof to a newly elected member on payment to the Swim Club of the net asset value of a membership as determined by the Board of Directors. In case of the enforcement of a lien, as above herein provided, neither the signature of the holder nor the delivery of the membership certificate shall be requisite to perfect the transfer to the Club or to a new possessor. The Treasurer of the Swim Club is hereby authorized as an attorney for the holder of such certificate to make such transfer. Every membership certificate issued is expressly subject to the provisions of this Section.

Upon assuming possession of a terminated membership certificate, the Swim Club shall reimburse the former member as follows:

(a) When termination of membership occurs as a result of permanent departure of the family from the community, repayment of the net asset value of the share membership fee shall be made immediately upon acceptance of a new member to fill the vacancy. If the member moves from Ulmstead Estates and fails for one year from the date of closing on the sale of the Ulmstead Estates residence to provide written notice to the Board of their new mailing address, then said past member shall forfeit all repayment rights and entitlements. Such forfeiture shall be considered a donation to USC and the funds shall be used for general USC expenses as determined, and at the sole discretion, of the Board. (This paragraph of Subsection (a) added during November, 2001 General Meeting.).

(b) When termination occurs for reasons other than departure from the community, repayment of the net asset value of the share membership fee shall be repaid after the original mortgage has been satisfied. In the event the pool reaches capacity before the mortgage is satisfied, repayment of terminated memberships will be made concurrent with the initiation of a new member. Should this provision apply, former members shall be reimbursed in the order of termination date and as new memberships occur.

(c) Members and former members shall be reimbursed for all assessments levied in payment against the principal and interest of the assumed mortgage after the mortgage has been satisfied. Equal payments will be made once annually from the cash assets at hand accumulated from the receipts of new memberships until all indebtedness to the members and former members is complete.

(d) Termination of membership for any reason shall be also terminate any existing obligation of the terminating member to satisfy any assessment levied for payment of

principal and interest outstanding against the existing mortgage beyond the year in which the member terminates.

(e) Annual dues, initiation fees and other yearly operating assessments shall not be reimbursed upon termination of membership, except that the terminating member may be reimbursed the pro-rata share of dues and interest as deemed equitable by the Board of Directors.

Section 6. All fees and other charges mentioned herein are exclusive of taxes imposed by the Federal, State, and other Governmental bodies and agencies.

Section 7. The fiscal year shall be from November 1 through October 31.

## **ARTICLE VI**

### **Meetings**

Section 1. The annual meeting of the Swim Club shall be held during the month of November in each year at such place and time as the Board of Directors may determine. The annual meetings will be held for the purpose of electing members of the Board of Directors as well as presenting Committee Reports and transacting such business as may be necessary in conducting the affairs of the Club.

Section 2. Special meetings of the Swim Club may be held on five days' written notice to all members. The notice shall state the purpose for which the special meeting is called; no other business may be transacted thereat. Special meetings of the Swim Club may be called by the Board of Directors. Also, upon written request of 15 members to the Secretary, stating the purpose therefore, a special meeting shall be called by the Secretary within 30 days.

Section 3. Notice of the Annual Meeting shall be given in writing to the members at least 5 days prior thereto. The notice of the meeting shall include names of candidates nominated by the Nomination Committee for election of members of the Board of Directors, and any proposed special assessments.

Section 4. Only members shall be entitled to vote at meetings of the Club. Any member may be represented by proxy if not able to attend in person. Voting may be by voice, but any member shall have the right to demand voting by roll call or by written ballot.

Section 5. One-third (1/3) of the Swim Club membership, in person or represented by proxy, shall constitute a quorum at all Swim Club meetings.

Section 6. The sending of notices of meetings to the last known address appearing for such members on the records of the Club shall constitute due and proper notice.

## **Article VII**

### **Standing and Special Committees**

Section 1. The Standing Committees shall be (a) membership (b) finance (c) nominating (d) program (e) rules and (f) operation and maintenance.

Section 2. A Membership Committee of 3 persons appointed by the President shall review and, if necessary, investigate and report to the Board of Directors upon the acceptability of applicants for memberships.

Section 3. A Finance Committee of 3 persons, one of whom will be the Treasurer, shall be appointed by the President. The Finance Committee shall prepare the annual budget for submission to and approval of the membership during the month of March. The Finance Committee shall exercise general supervision over the financial transactions of the Club.

Section 4. A Nominating Committee of 3 persons appointed by the President shall nominate candidates for the Board of Directors to be elected at the time of the annual meeting. Members may also nominate candidates for the Board of Directors from the floor at the time of the annual meeting.

Section 5. A Program Committee of 3 persons appointed by the President shall be responsible for the planning and conduct of special activities.

Section 6. A Rules Committee of 3 persons appointed by the President shall be responsible for preparing rules for use and operation of the pool and shall in conjunction with the Board of Directors see that the rules and regulations of the Swim Club are enforced.

Section 7. An Operation and Maintenance Committee of 3 persons appointed by the President shall be responsible for the day to day operation of the pool.

Section 8. The President shall be authorized to appoint such special committees as shall be deemed necessary or expedient for the welfare of the Club.

## **Article VIII**

### **Property and Finances**

Section 1. The funds of the Swim Club shall be deposited only in institutions the deposits of which are insured by the FDIC.

Section 2. All disbursements of funds of the Swim Club shall be made by check signed by the Treasurer and either the President or Vice President. The membership may provide for the establishment of a bank account for withdrawals with a balance not to exceed the amount of the Treasurer Surety Bond, such account to be used only for payment of normal and/or emergency operating expenses.

Section 3. No obligation or expenditure may be made by any officer, or any committee, or member thereof without the prior approval of the Board of Directors except as provided in Section 2, Article VIII.

Section 4. The Board of Directors shall assure the faithful performance of the Treasurer by means of any adequate surety bond.

Section 5. The accounts of the Swim Club shall be evaluated every other year by a compiling or a similar accounting vehicle or process as determined by the Board on an annual basis. The report of this compiling or similar accounting vehicle or process is to be presented at the annual meeting of the membership. (During the November, 2001 General Meeting the requirement of a yearly audit was deleted and a compiling or similar vehicle inserted.).

## **ARTICLE IX**

### **General**

Section 1. Copies of the organization papers of the Swim Club, its By-Laws and any amendments thereto shall, be preserved in a place of safekeeping. Results of elections and proceedings of all meetings of the Board of Directors shall be recorded in minute books. The minutes of all meetings shall be signed by the President and Secretary or by those acting in their places. A signed copy of such minutes for each meeting shall be retained in the custody of the Secretary.

Section 2. Prior to the Annual Meeting in November the Board of Directors shall deliver or mail an annual report to the members to be acted upon at the annual meeting. The annual report shall include, but not necessarily be limited to, a financial report.

Section 3. Any questions as to the proper interpretation of these By-Laws shall be determined by the Board of Directors.

Section 4. These By-Laws may be amended by a simple majority of the members of Ulmstead Swim Club, Inc., present or represented by proxy at any meeting of the Club provided at least five days notice of such amendment is given in writing to each member.

Section 3. All points of order not covered by these By-Laws shall be ruled upon according to Robert's Rules of Order.

## ARTICLE X

### Miscellaneous

Section 1. Members of the Board of Directors shall not receive compensation for services rendered.

Revised and approved by membership at meeting on 3/1/78.

Article II, Section 9 revised and approved by membership at meeting on 11/29/79.

Article II, Section I was approved by a majority of the membership at a meeting on 11/18/92, but did not have the required 75% majority. The membership on that date gave approval to the Board to solicit the remaining votes by proxy to amend this section. The required number of votes was received by the Board in 2/93.

List of effective pages:

Page	Date of Last Revision
1	2/93
2	2/93
3	11/79
4	3/78
5	3/78
6	3/78
7	3/78
8	3/78
9	3/78
10	2/93
11	2/93

During the November, 2001 General Meeting a number of changes, deletions or revisions were made. Each of the modifications to the By-Laws was accomplished in accordance with the procedures for by-law revision.

**ULMSTEAD SWIM CLUB - 2005 OPERATING RULES**

The following rules are for the benefit and protection of all users of the pool. Failure to comply with these rules shall be considered cause for suspension of pool privileges or cancellation of membership.

**I. General Rules**

**A.** The pool manager/assistant manager is responsible for enforcing all pool rules. (See section V). The manager/assistant manager may intervene in situations where the health and safety of others is in jeopardy or destruction to pool property is evident. The manager/assistant manager shall have the authority to temporarily suspend a pool member(s) for maximum of 3 days. Serious infractions shall be reported to the Board of Directors for disciplinary action.

**B.** Lifeguards are responsible for enforcing all pool rules and those deemed necessary by the company providing pool related services.

**C.** No member shall direct any manager or lifeguard in the operation of the pool facilities and enforcement of pool rules.

**D.** Members who wish to suggest changes, improvements in the pool rules and/or pool operations may do so by contacting one of the board members listed below:

Drew Hudson 410-349-0803	EG Gipple 410-349-1931	Anne Storey 410-626-7718	Kathy Prnissen 410-349-2356
	Susan Russell 410-757-7356	Chris Heffernan 410-626-8006	

**E.** All persons using the pool and premises do so at their own risk. Ulmstead Swim Club is not responsible for any accident, injury loss or damage.

**F.** The cost of damages to pool property will be charged to the member responsible for the damages.

**G.** Sport equipment (ex. Basketball) owned by the swim club may be used on swim club property only and must be signed out with a lifeguard. Members will be charged for equipment that is not returned.

**II. Pool Operation**

**A.** Use of the pool is limited to the following hours:

When public school <b>is in</b> session:	Mon-Fri.	4 pm - 8 pm
	Sat/Sun	12 pm - 8 pm
When public school <b>is not in</b> session:	Mon. -Sun.	11 am - 8 pm

Pool hours may be altered for swim meets, community functions, other events or for health/safety/maintenance reasons.

- B. Swim team practices will be held in the morning hours prior to pool opening.
- C. The pool will be closed for inclement weather at the discretion of the manager/assistant manager. Should this occur only pool personnel will be permitted in the pool enclosure (fenced in area).
- D. The pavilion may be reserved by pool members according to the following:

Cost:	\$35.00
Max. # of people:	20, with 1 adult chaperone per 5 minors
Availability:	Weekdays during normal pool hours

### **III. Pool Admission**

- A. Pool managers, lifeguards or board members have the authority to require identification for any, person in the pool enclosure.
- B. Members must sign in ALL guests. Guests are to be accompanied by a member and need to comply with all pool rules. Failure to sign in guests may result in the suspension of guest privileges for the member.
- C. A maximum of 7 guests may be sponsored by a member in 1 day without prior approval of the Board.
- D. Residents of Ulmstead Estates who are not members of the Swim Club may not be guests more than one (1) day per season.

### **IV. Special Restrictions**

- A. The wading pool is reserved for children under the age of 5 years old who must be accompanied by a parent or other guardian over the age of 13.
- B. The 2-3 ft. comer is reserved for children under 5 years of age.
- C. Children under 8 must pass the swim test to be permitted to use the pool without a parent present. Members may be required to pass the swim test prior to using the diving boards.
- D. Children born in 1995 or later MUST be accompanied by a parent or other guardian.**
- E. A 15 minute adult swim will be called every hour. A person must be 18 years of age or older to be in the main pool during adult swim.

### **V. Basic Pool Rules**

- A. Shower before entering pool.
- B. No glass in pool enclosure.
- C. No running, pushing wrestling, dunking, water fights, or undue disturbance is permitted D. No pets in the pool enclosure.
- E. Members/guests with open wounds cold. coughs, inflamed eyes, infections or contagious diseases may be refused admittance. Band aids must be removed before using the pool. F. Eating and drinking is permitted at tables, in the pavilion and in grassy areas G. Smoking is not permitted in the pool enclosure.
- H. Inflatable rafts are not permitted in the main pool. Other flotation devices may be used at the discretion of the lifeguards.
- I. All injuries must be reported immediately to the lifeguards. J. Abusive, foul and profane language is not permitted.
- K. Toilet trained children are permitted in the main pool. Non-toilet trained children may use the main pool and wading pool if a swim diaper is used.
- L. One person on the diving board at a time. General swimming may be permitted in the diving well at the discretion of the lifeguards.
- M. Alcoholic beverages are prohibited in the pool enclosure.
- N. Emergency and family information must be on file with the lifeguards. O. No in-line skates are permitted in the pool enclosure.
- P. Other rules may be enforced by pool personnel for the benefit and safety of pool